
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

1. Convene Meeting                                                                                                                         
2. Review and Approve Agenda 

3. Reorganization 
A. Chair 
B. Vice-Chair 
C. Secretary 

 
4. Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes  

A. November 20, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Public Comment Restricted to Items on the Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 

6. Tabled Old Business 
A. SLD-230001 0 Hanover Street- Tabled  
B. SLD-230003 Library Subdivision at Lutheran Seminary- Tabled  

Time Extension Required 
 

7. Variance 
A. ZHB-230005 – 202 Carlise Street 

Request for variance from § 27-804(5) regarding 5-foot side yard minimum setback 
requirements and § 27-1502(A) and (B) regarding apartment conversion general zoning district 
requirements and fire escape design requirements at the subject property located in the RO, 
Residential Office District. Planning Commission to provide recommendation(s) to the Zoning 
Hearing Board. 
 

8. Special Exception  
A. ZHB-230005 – 202 Carlise Street 

Request for Special Exception for a Conversion Apartments land-use at the subject property 
located in the RO, Residential Office District. Planning Commission to provide 
recommendation(s) to the Zoning Hearing Board. 

B. ZHB-230006 – 533 Steinwehr Avenue 
Request for Special Exception for a Commercial Outdoor Recreation land-use at the subject 
property located in the TC, Tourism Commercial District. Planning Commission to provide 
recommendation(s) to the Zoning Hearing Board. 

 
9. 2023-2024 Rezoning 

A. Review of draft zoning changes to provide feedback to the rezoning staff committee. 
 

10. Announcements 
A. Next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 7:00 p.m.  

 
11. Additional Comments from Planning Commission Members 

12. Public Comment  

13. Adjourn  

  

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, November 20 at 7:00pm | Borough Council Chambers 

Members Present:   Charles Strauss, Martin Jolin, Nicholas Redman, John Rice, Sarah Kipp 

Staff Members:   Carly Marshall, Planning Director; Chad Clabaugh, Borough Engineer; Adam Boyer, Planning 

Commission Solicitor 

Members of the Public: Sue Cipperly, 314 N. Stratton; Jude Seniara, Gettysburg Connection; Shelley Knouse, 28 

Chambersburg; Brandt Ensor, Adams County Library; Mary Sue Cline, Adams County Library; Susan Whaley, Adams 

County Library; Ryan Schuster, K&W Engineers 

Convene Meeting:   Planning Commission Chair Charles Strauss called to order the Monday, November 20, 2023 

meeting of the Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission at 7:01 p.m.  

Review and Approve Agenda: Sarah Kipp made a motion to approve the agenda as amended to include review of the 

sign ordinance, which had been provided for the Planning Commission’s review as an attachment to the agenda but had 

not been listed as an agenda item.  Martin Jolin provided a second, and the motion carried 5-0. 

Review and Approve Minutes: Martin Jolin made a motion to approve the minutes for the Monday, September 18, 

2023 meeting as corrected.  John Rice provided a second, and the motion carried 4-0 with Nick Redman abstaining.   

Public Comment: None.  

 

SLD-230001 - 0 Hanover Street: No updates have been submitted for the 0 Hanover Street Plan to date.  Martin 

Jolin made a motion to table the plan until the December meeting.  Nick Redman provided a second and the 

motion carried 5-0. 

 

SLD-230003 – Library Subdivision at Lutheran Seminary: Ryan Schuster, K&W Engineers introduced the 

plan and explained the property being subdivided.  Carly Marshall noted there were zoning deficiencies noted 

regarding the creation of nonconformity with parking in the side setback, and the use ‘library’ is not one 

permitted in the Institutional District, outside of being an accessory to an educational institution.  She 

recommended they change the title of the plan to United Lutheran Seminary subdivision plan and remove 

references to the library if they wish to move forward with the subdivision at this time.  The Adams County 

Library would still have the opportunity to pursue a zoning change or a variance for the use.   

Chad Clabaugh explained his review letter which included the requirement for underground and stormwater 

facilities to be identified on the plan and easements shown and/or obtained for any facilities that will cross 

property boundaries. 

Suzan Whaley commented that the library will not want to pursue the subdivision plan if they cannot construct.  

Their attorney will reach out to the Borough to discuss the options of a zoning amendment or Variance 

application provided in the Zoning Officer memo. 

Martin Jolin made a motion to table the plan until December 18, 2023.  John Rice provided a second and the 

motion carried 5-0. 

 

  

 
 

 
 



 

 

SLD-230004 – Welcome Center Land Development: Chad Clabaugh introduced the plan for the future 

welcome center at 340 Baltimore Street.  He explained that there are two phases proposed to the construction due 

to a failing culvert under the rear of the property, which is anticipated to be repaired as part of a separate 

infrastructure project.   

There was some discussion about the planned Gateway Connectivity project and the associates streetscape 

improvements. 

Martin Jolin made a motion to accept the plan for review.  John Rice provided a second, and the motion carried 

5-0. 

 

2023-2024 Rezoning: Carly Marshall presented updates to the draft zoning map made in response to public 

comment received in the October Town Hall Meeting.  She also presented the draft dimensional standards for the 

proposed districts.   

There was considerable discussion relating to the maximum height limits in the proposed Redevelopment 

District.  Nick Redman stated that he would be more comfortable with 48’ maximum height with additional 12’ 

in height with a 30’ step back for additional floor.  He noted that incentives should be required for the additional 

height.  The Planning Commission voted by consensus 4-1 to recommend 48’ height in the Redevelopment 

District with an additional 12’ height available with incentives and with a 30 foot step-back.   

There was some discussion about the revision of the incentives an applicant could use and could include 

subterranean parking, affordable housing, and public bathrooms.  The Planning Commission requested that 

Michael Baker International be consulted to provide recommendations. 

Shelley Knouse stated that 48’ should be the maximum height permitted. 

Sue Cipperly commented that there are other ways to incentivize development than height. 

 

Sign Ordinance Revision: Carly Marshall presented a draft sign ordinance and highlighted several notable 

changes from the current sign ordinance including a prohibition of LED lit signs and razor banners, the reduction 

of the prohibition on painting signs directly on buildings to the Historic District only, and the revision of the 

mural definition to allow more flexibility.    

Shelley Knouse commented that her building is in the Historic District and is already painted.  She could paint a 

mural on her building but not a sign for her business and questioned what the difference would be? 

Martin Jolin made a motion to provide comment to the Borough Council on the draft Sign Ordinance to allow 

painted advertisements on buildings with review by HARB. John Rice provided a second, and the motion carried 

4-1, with Charles Strauss noting that the Sign Ordinance is outside the purview of the Planning Commission and 

they do not have the experience or expertise to comment. 

The public hearing for the sign ordinance is scheduled for Tuesday, November 28 at 6:30 PM. 

 

Announcements:  

Staff Update: Carly Marshall announced that this is her final meeting with the Planning Commission, as her 

employment is ending with Gettysburg December 12.  Charles Gable and Karen Mesher will be attending Planning 

Commission meetings in the interim until a new Planning Director is found. 

Planning Commission member updates: Charles Strauss thanked Carly Marshall for her work with the Planning 

Commission. 

Next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Monday, December 18, 2023, at 7:00 PM in Borough Council 

Chambers. 



 

 

Additional Comments from Planning Commissioners:  None. 

Public Comment: None 

Adjournment:   John Rice made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:18 pm.  Martin Jolin provided a second, and the 

motion carried 4-0. 

 

  



 

1 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To: Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
 
From:  Peter Griffioen, Assistant Zoning Officer & Code Compliance Officer 
 John Whitmore, AICP, Zoning Officer and Director of Planning, Zoning, and Code Compliance 
 
CC:  Adam Boyer, Solicitor 
   
Date: January 12, 2024 
 
RE: ZHB-230005 
 202 Carlise Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 Variance & Special Exception Application 
 

The following memorandum provides background information regarding a request for Variances and Special 
Exception from the owner of the above-referenced property.   

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Name of Project:  202 Carlise Street 

Type of Project: Variance from Sections 27-804(5) and 27-1502(A) and (B) 

 Special Exception per Sections 27-803(A) and (B) 

Project Address: 202 Carlisle Street 

Case Number: ZHB-230005 

Zoning: (RO) Residential Office District 
(HD) Historic District 

 (SEO) Streetscape Enhancement Overlay 
     
Property Owner(s): GOONEY 45 LLC 
 1030 Merrick Road 
 Baldwin, NY 11510 
     
Applicant: Erik Mahler 
 1030 Merrick Road 
 Baldwin, NY 11510 
 
Applicant’s Agent: Gary Shaffer, RA 
 26 North 4th Street 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Submission Date:  A complete application was submitted to the Zoning Officer on December 1, 2023. 



ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

2 
 

 

 

 

MPC Timeline:  

• The applicant was notified of the January 24, 2024, hearing date via First Class Mail on January 9, 
2024. 

• The hearing advertisement was sent to the Gettysburg times for publication on January 10, 2024, and 
January 17, 2024. 

• The adjacent property owners will be notified of the hearing via letter mailed first class by Friday, 
January 12, 2024. 

• The property will be clearly posted with signs on January 12, 2024. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. PROPOSED ACTION 
§ 27-803 Uses Permitted by Special Exception. 
The applicant seeks a Special Exception for the following land uses: 

(A) Apartments or condominiums, student housing.  
(B) Conversion apartments. 

 
§ 27-804(5) Side yard setbacks. 

The applicant seeks a variance from the minimum five (5) foot side yard setback. 

 

§ 27-1502 (A) All other district requirements shall be met. 

The applicant seeks a variance from district standards as they relate to side yard setbacks. 

 

§ 27-1502 (B) Outside fire escape and stairways shall be under roof. 

The applicant seeks a variance from exterior stairwell roofing requirements. 

 

2. SITE HISTORY 
Goony 45 LLC a Pennsylvania Domestic Limited Liability Company purchased the property situated at 

202 Carlisle Street, Gettysburg, PA 17325 in November of 2023. The Property is approximately 10,019 

sq. ft. in size & is located within the RO (Residential Office), the H (Historic), and the SE (Streetscape 

Enhancement Overlay) Districts.    

  

Prior Use(s): 

Our records dating back to 1998 indicate that this property had been used as a detached two-family 

land use based rental unit. 

 

Recent Permitting and License History: 

06/23/2023 RRI-230097 Regulated Rental Inspection (Passed) 

 



ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

3 
 

Prior Zoning Hearing Board Decision(s): None identified. 

 

3. RELEVANT ZONING SECTIONS 
a) DEFINITIONS 

APARTMENT (CONVERSION) A dwelling created by converting an existing building into a dwelling 
for one or more families. 

APARTMENT HOUSE A building designed and used exclusively as a residence for three or more 
families living independently of each other. 

CONDOMINIUM A set of individual dwelling units or other areas of buildings each owned by an 
individual person(s) in fee simple, with such owners assigned a proportionate interest in the 
remainder of the real estate which is designated for common ownership, and which is created 
under either the Pennsylvania Unit Property Act of 1963 or the Pennsylvania Uniform 
Condominium Act of 1980, as amended. 

DWELLING (APARTMENT) See "dwelling (multifamily)."  

DWELLING (MULTIFAMILY) A building used by three or more families living independently of each 
other, with their own cooking and bath facilities, including apartment houses and condominiums. 

DWELLING UNIT (DU) One or more rooms, with separate cooking and bath facilities, used or 
designed for use by one or more persons maintaining a common household, with access directly 
from outdoors or through a common entrance. 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION A use for which the Zoning Hearing Board may grant permission following a 
public hearing & findings of fact consistent with this chapter, provided that the use complies with 
the conditions & standards required by this chapter. 

STUDENT HOUSING A multifamily dwelling with rooms for rental to students. The owner, or person 
responsible, 21 years of age or over, shall live on the premises. 

b) PART 8 RESIDENTIAL OFFICE DISTRICT (RO) 
§ 27-801 Purpose. The purpose of this Part is to provide for offices, select businesses, residential 
uses and other compatible uses within the Baltimore Street/Carlisle Street Corridor and at other 
select locations in a manner that respects and preserves the special character of these areas. 
Adaptive reuses are encouraged that preserve the viability of the larger structures within these 
areas. 
 
§ 27-502 Uses Permitted by Right 

The “apartments or condominiums, student housing” land uses and “conversion apartments” land 
use is not included in the uses permitted by right in the RO District.    

§ 27-503 Uses Permitted by Special Exception.  
The “apartments or condominiums, student housing” land uses and “conversion apartments” land 
use is permitted by Special Exception in the RO District 
 



ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

4 
 

c) PART 15 GENERAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

§27-1502 Apartment Conversions. A structure may be converted into apartments, provided that 
the following requirements are met: § 27-1503. Accessory Buildings and Structures. A. All other 
district requirements shall be met. B. Outside fire escapes and stairways shall be under roof and 
shall not be on any outside wall facing a street. 

 
d) PART 17 ZONING HEARING BOARD 

1. § 27-1704  Standards for Zoning Hearing Board Action. In any instance where the Zoning 
Hearing Board is required to consider a special exception or variance in accordance with the 
provisions of this Part, the applicant shall provide evidence to allow the Board to, among 
other things, consider the following standards. The Board shall hear requests for variances 
where it is alleged that the provisions of this chapter inflict unnecessary hardship upon the 
applicant. The Board may, by rule, prescribe the form of application & may require 
preliminary application to the Zoning Officer. The Board may grant a variance, provided that 
all of the following findings are made where relevant in a given case: 
 

A. For Variances:  
(1) That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, 

narrowness, or shallowness of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other 
physical conditions peculiar to the property & that the unnecessary hardship is due to 
such conditions & not the circumstances or conditions generally created by the 
provisions of this chapter in the neighborhood or district in which the property is 
located. 

(2) That, because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that 
the property can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of this chapter 
& that the authorization of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable 
use of the property. 

(3) That such unnecessary hardship has not been created by the appellant. 
(4) That the variance, if authorized, will not alter the essential character of the 

neighborhood or district in which the property is located, nor substantially or 
permanently impair the appropriate use or development of adjacent property, nor be 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

(5) That the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford 
relief & will represent the least modification possible of the regulation in issue. 

(6) In granting any variance, the Board may attach such reasonable conditions & 
safeguards as it may deem necessary to implement the purposes of the Pennsylvania 
Municipalities Planning Code & this chapter. 
 

B. For Special Exceptions: 
(1) The applicant shall provide evidence to indicate to the Zoning Hearing Board that: 

(a) The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the Part whereby it is 
permitted and the overall purposes contained in Part 1.  
(b) The proposed use and its location are generally consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map.  

https://ecode360.com/27359910#27359916


ZHB-230005  -  202 CARLISLE STREET, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

5 
 

(c) The proposed use complies with the lot requirements and the building height of 
the district where it is proposed.  
(d) The proposed use is consistent with the general and supplemental regulations set 
forth in Part 15, and the design standards of Part 19.  
(e) The proposed use will not substantially injure or detract from the use of 
neighboring property or from the character of the neighborhood and that the use of 
the adjacent property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the proposed use, located 
on the proposed property, with the present and proposed characteristics of each, and 
considering the present and proposed characteristics of the neighboring properties, 
will not cause negative impacts over and above those typically associated with such 
uses located and operated in a usual manner.  
(f) The proposed use will provide a fence or a planting screen and/or additional yard or 
open space area to reduce the effect of the proposed use upon adjacent properties.  
(g) The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the sites and 
structures identified by the Local Historic District Regulations [Chapter 11].  
(h) The proposed use complies with the required off-street parking and loading 
regulations in Part 13.  
(i) The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and that the 
applicant will make any improvements needed to guarantee compatibility with 
adjacent streets as recommended by the Borough Engineer.  
(j) The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site.  
(k) The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities, such as 
water, sewer, police and fire protection, schools, etc.  
(l) The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19 of the 
Borough Code. 

(2) The Zoning Hearing Board may attach reasonable conditions as it deems necessary to 
assure compliance with this chapter. 

 



















 

1 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To: Gettysburg Borough Planning Commission 
 
From:  Peter Griffioen, Assistant Zoning Officer & Code Compliance Officer 
 John Whitmore, AICP, Zoning Officer and Director of Planning, Zoning, and Code Compliance 
 
CC:  Adam Boyer, Solicitor 
   
Date: January 12, 2024 
 
RE: ZHB-230006 
 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 Special Exception Application 
 

The following memorandum provides background information regarding a request for Variances and Special 
Exception from the owner of the above-referenced property.   

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Name of Project:  Gettysgolf 

Type of Project: Special Exception per Section 27-903 

Project Address: 533 Steinwehr Avenue 

Case Number: ZHB-230006 

Zoning: (TC) Tourist Commercial District 
(HD) Historic District 

 (SEO) Streetscape Enhancement Overlay 
     
Property Owner(s): Gettysburg Nature Alliance 
 297 Steinwehr Avenue 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
     
Applicant: Gettysgolf LLC 
 380 Steinwehr Avenue 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Applicant’s Attorney: John Murphy, Esquire 
 28 West Middle Street 
 Gettysburg, PA 17325 
 
Submission Date:  A complete application was submitted to the Zoning Officer on December 29, 2023. 
 



ZHB-230006  -  533 STEINWEHR AVENUE, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

2 
 

 

 

MPC Timeline:  

• The applicant will notified of the February 21st  hearing date via First Class Mail by the ZHB Solicitor. 

• The hearing will be advertised in the Gettysburg Times in accordance with the Pennsylvania Sunshine 
Law and Municipal Planning Code. 

• The adjacent property owners will be notified of the hearing via letter mailed first class by Friday, 
February 2, 2024. 

• The property will be clearly posted with signs by February 9, 2024. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. PROPOSED ACTION 
§ 27-903 Uses Permitted by Special Exception. 
The applicant seeks a Special Exception for the following land use: 

(B) Outdoor commercial recreation or entertainment activity. 
 

2. SITE HISTORY 
Gettysgolf LLC a Pennsylvania Domestic Limited Liability Company entered into a purchase agreement 

for 533 Steinwehr Avenue, Gettysburg, PA 17325 in December of 2023. The Property is approximately 

40,946 sq. ft. in area and is located within the TC (Tourist Commercial), the H (Historic), and the SE 

(Streetscape Enhancement Overlay) Districts.    

  

Prior Use(s): 

Our records dating back to 1998 indicate that this property had at one time been the site of a Hardee’s 

Restaurant with drive through, which was razed in 2016. The site has remained vacant since that 

demolition.  

 

Recent Permitting and License History: 

06/24/2016 16-60 Historic District Work Permit for demolition of existing building, paving and 

curbing. 

07/14/2016 COA-16-39 Demolition similar to permit 16-60 with an installation of split rail fence. 

 

Prior Zoning Hearing Board Decision(s): None identified. 

 

3. RELEVANT ZONING SECTIONS 
a) DEFINITIONS 

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR RECREATION A use that: 

A. Is used principally for active or passive recreation (such as a driving range).  

B. Is used for a profit-making purpose. 

 



ZHB-230006  -  533 STEINWEHR AVENUE, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

3 
 

RECREATION, COMMERCIAL Leisure-time uses that are principally operated for commercial 
purposes. 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION A use for which the Zoning Hearing Board may grant permission following a 
public hearing & findings of fact consistent with this chapter, provided that the use complies with 
the conditions & standards required by this chapter. 

b) PART 9 TOURIST COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (TC) 
§ 27-901 Purpose. The purpose of this Part is to provide for and encourage the location of retail 
business establishments serving the tourist and visitor trade. 
 
§ 27-902 Uses Permitted by Right 

The “commercial outdoor recreation” land use is not included in the uses permitted by right in the 
TC District.    

§ 27-903 Uses Permitted by Special Exception.  
The “commercial outdoor recreation” land use is permitted by Special Exception in the TC District 
 

c) PART 17 ZONING HEARING BOARD 
1. § 27-1704  Standards for Zoning Hearing Board Action. In any instance where the Zoning 

Hearing Board is required to consider a special exception or variance in accordance with the 
provisions of this Part, the applicant shall provide evidence to allow the Board to, among 
other things, consider the following standards. The Board shall hear requests for variances 
where it is alleged that the provisions of this chapter inflict unnecessary hardship upon the 
applicant. The Board may, by rule, prescribe the form of application & may require 
preliminary application to the Zoning Officer. The Board may grant a variance, provided that 
all of the following findings are made where relevant in a given case: 
 

B. For Special Exceptions: 
(1) The applicant shall provide evidence to indicate to the Zoning Hearing Board that: 

(a) The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the Part whereby it is 
permitted and the overall purposes contained in Part 1.  
(b) The proposed use and its location are generally consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and the current Gettysburg Borough Zoning Map.  
(c) The proposed use complies with the lot requirements and the building height of 
the district where it is proposed.  
(d) The proposed use is consistent with the general and supplemental regulations set 
forth in Part 15, and the design standards of Part 19.  
(e) The proposed use will not substantially injure or detract from the use of 
neighboring property or from the character of the neighborhood and that the use of 
the adjacent property is adequately safeguarded. Further, the proposed use, located 
on the proposed property, with the present and proposed characteristics of each, and 
considering the present and proposed characteristics of the neighboring properties, 
will not cause negative impacts over and above those typically associated with such 
uses located and operated in a usual manner.  
(f) The proposed use will provide a fence or a planting screen and/or additional yard or 
open space area to reduce the effect of the proposed use upon adjacent properties.  

https://ecode360.com/27359910#27359916


ZHB-230006  -  533 STEINWEHR AVENUE, GETTYSBURG, PA 17325 
JANUARY 12, 2024 

 

4 
 

(g) The proposed use will promote preservation or adaptive reuse of the sites and 
structures identified by the Local Historic District Regulations [Chapter 11].  
(h) The proposed use complies with the required off-street parking and loading 
regulations in Part 13.  
(i) The proposed use will provide safe and adequate access to streets and that the 
applicant will make any improvements needed to guarantee compatibility with 
adjacent streets as recommended by the Borough Engineer.  
(j) The proposed use will provide for pedestrian access to the site.  
(k) The proposed use will not adversely affect public facilities and utilities, such as 
water, sewer, police and fire protection, schools, etc.  
(l) The proposed use will comply with the signage regulations of Chapter 19 of the 
Borough Code. 

(2) The Zoning Hearing Board may attach reasonable conditions as it deems necessary to 
assure compliance with this chapter. 

 


























































